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WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 

WINCHESTER BOULEVARD SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT  

 

RESPONSE TO BIDDER QUESTIONS 
 

February 19, 2021 

 

 

TO:  All Bidders 

 

FROM:  Alan Kam, Senior Civil Engineer 

 

RE: Winchester Boulevard Sewer Rehabilitation Project 

                         Response to Bidder Questions 

 

 

The following are responses to Bidder questions pertaining to the Drawings and Specifications for the 

above-referenced project: 

   

1. On the University Avenue rehab bid in 2018, for the safety statistics in form 00405, the 
allowable average value for the EIR was 1.1, for the RIR was 4.0 and for the LTIR was 
2.3, but for this bid, they have been reduced to 0.9, 2.9 & 1.7 respectively.  Some of our 
subcontractors are concerned that, with the new lower allowable values, they will be 
unable to bid this project.  If at all possible, please increase the allowable average 
values for the EIR, RIR & LTIR back up to at least 1.1, 4.0 & 2.3 respectively, as they 
were in the 2018 bid, so that the subcontractor quotes needed to perform this project will 
be available. 

See Addendum No. 1, Item 1.b for revised EIR, RIR and LTIR values.  

 

2. Please confirm that the warranty inspection of the CIPP lining specified in section 02313-
1.2.C will be performed by CCTV inspection, will be allowed to be conducted with flow 
during low flow conditions, and will not require a bypass to be in operation.  Also, who 
will be performing the actual warranty inspection work, the District or the Contractor?  

CCTV inspection will be allowed to be conducted with flow during low flow 
conditions without the need for a bypass in operation. Warranty inspection shall 
be completed by the Owner, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.1.  

 

3. CIPP design parameters specified in section 02313-2.3.A require the CIPP thickness 
calculations to use a soil modulus of 500 psi, which is an extremely low value for almost 
all design situations, and especially for this project given that the majority of the pipe is 
located under streets &/or pavement where soil can reasonably be expected to be well 
consolidated and of higher strength.  Using this soil modulus in the CIPP thickness 
calculations will unnecessarily increase the CIPP design thickness, increasing the 
difficulty of installation and overall project cost.  Typical values for soil modulus are often 
1,000 psi at shallow to moderate depths under streets, and with values as high as 1,500 
psi or higher in deeper &/or well consolidated soils.  We request that the soil modulus to 
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be used in the CIPP thickness calculations be increased to at least 1,000 psi for this 
project. 

The soil modulus will remain as 500 psi. Request to increase denied. 

 

4. Section 02313-3.6.C.3 requires the Contractor to abide by all requirements of any 
discharge permit for discharging any water from the curing of the liner process, and 
states that the discharge permit may require filtering to remove substances that may 
affect the Owner’s treatment plant operations.  Please clearly define any requirements 
and limitations for discharge of the CIPP process and curing water, including any 
substances that must be monitored or removed prior to discharge, and the limits for 
those substances that must be achieved to allow discharge.  Is this meant to be a 
requirement to filter styrene from the cure water discharge, and if so, what concentration 
is the threshold that must be achieved for discharge? 

Section 02313-3.6.C.3 deleted, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.3.  

 

5. Section 02313-3.8.4 requires testing for water tightness be performed for the cured CIPP 
liner per APS Test and Inspection Code, ZTV Materials Testing, DWA-A 143-3.  We 
have never seen this test specified for leakage in CIPP, and when researching it online, 
could find very little information on it.  From what we could find, it appears that it is a test 
performed on cut samples of the CIPP, and that it is likely used mostly in Europe, 
particularly Germany.  If leakage testing will be required in the field on the installed in-
place CIPP, please revise this specification section to instead have the required leakage 
testing be performed per the gravity pipe leakage testing parameters specified in ASTM 
F1216, which is the industry standard for CIPP leakage testing in the U.S. 

Section 02313-3.8.4 deleted, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.4.  

 

6. Regarding lateral reinstatement in the CIPP, the 5th paragraph of section 02313-3.10 
says that any over-cut lateral openings that expose the host pipe shall be 
sealed.  However, the 8th paragraph of that same section states that the Contractor shall 
seal the connection to prevent groundwater infiltration, but with no clarification or 
limitation as to which connections would require this sealing, making it appear that all the 
reinstated connections could be required to be sealed.  Please clarify when lateral 
connection sealing will be required.  Is it required for every reinstated lateral 
connection?  Or is it only required for over-cut lateral openings that expose the host 
pipe?  If all the reinstated lateral connections must be sealed, not just the overcut ones, 
please provide a unit price bid item for providing this work. 

Requirement for sealing the connection to prevent groundwater infiltration deleted 
in Section 02313-3.10, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.5. Lateral connection sealing 
only required during overcut liner when reinstating laterals.  

 

7. Do all the laterals on the CIPP alignment have existing cleanouts?  If some of the 
laterals do not have existing cleanouts, but those laterals will need to be bypassed when 
they are blocked during lining installation, will the District authorize and pay for the 
installation of cleanouts where needed?  If so, will it be under a change order, or should 
a revocable unit price item for installing a cleanout be added to the bid? 
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Known existing cleanouts are shown on the contract drawings. Contractor shall 
include installation of cleanouts where needed as part of Bid Item No. 4 in Section 
00310 – Bid Schedule for sewer flow control. 

 

8. The manhole rehabilitation specification 02316 mentions inspections being performed by 
a NACE Certified Coating Inspector.  Is this inspector provided and paid for by the 
District or the Contractor?  If provided by the Contractor, what is the scope of this 
inspector’s duties on the project? 

Per Section 02316-1.4, the Contractor shall retain and pay for a third-party testing 
laboratory to perform field tests including film thickness measurements, holiday 
and pinhole testing, and coating adhesion testing per paragraph 02316-1.5. 

 

9. Will the exfiltration test specified in 02730-3.2.B be required to be performed on the 
installed CIPP liner?  If so, it states that no change in the water level is allowed to be 
observed during the 2-hour test period.  This is contrary to standard industry practices 
and specifications for CIPP which, recognizing that field testing of in-place systems 
cannot often achieve ideal testing conditions, typically allow a minimal nominal leakage 
to be observed within certain preset parameters and still achieve acceptance.  Also, a 2-
hour test period will be impractical for this project given the need for the test to be 
performed before any laterals can be reinstated.  If this test is meant to apply to the 
CIPP pipe lining, we request that this specification be revised to instead have the 
required leakage testing be performed per the gravity pipe leakage testing parameters 
specified in ASTM F1216, which is the industry standard for CIPP leakage testing 

Exfiltration test specified in Section 02730-3.2.B no longer required, see 
Addendum No. 1, Item 1.d.1.  

 

10. On drawing C-8, the pipe segment to be CIPP lined between MH 7-009-03 and MH 7-
009-01 is shown to pass under railroad tracks.  Does the CIPP lining for this segment 
need to be designed with E-80 railroad loading, or is this segment protected by a load-
bearing casing or cap which would make the railroad loading inapplicable? 

The pipe segment between MH 7-009-03 to MH 7-009-01 shall be designed to 
support Cooper E-80 Railroad Design Loading, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.2.  

 

11. Will a railroad encroachment permit be required for this project?  If so, please confirm 
that the District will obtain and pay for the permit, and clarify what the Contractor will be 
responsible for providing under the permit. 

A railroad encroachment permit is not anticipated to be required as project 
manholes are located outside of the existing railroad easement. If the Contractor 
requires work within the railroad easement, then the Contractor shall be 
responsible for obtaining and paying for the railroad encroachment permit.  

 

12. Will a Caltrans encroachment permit be required for this project?  If so, please confirm 
that the District will obtain and pay for the main permit or already has a permit allowing 
maintenance in the applicable areas, and that the Contractor will only be responsible for 
obtaining the double permit typically required to be obtained by Contractors prior to 
working under the main permit. 
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A Caltrans encroachment permit is not anticipated to be required as project 
manholes are located outside of the existing Caltrans easement. If the Contractor 
requires work within the Caltrans easement, then the Contractor shall be 
responsible for obtaining and paying for the Caltrans encroachment permit. The 
District does not have an existing permit allowing maintenance in Caltrans rights-
of-way for this project.  

 

13. May we get an extension on deadline to submit questions (with assurance they’ll be 
answered)? 

An extension on deadline to submit questions will not be permitted. 

 

14. Section 02313-1.2C Guarantee:  Would the District consider performing the warranty 
inspection without support from the Contractor?  This is very costly to remobilize to 
furnish “safety equipment and interior lighting for the inspection as required.”  We 
suggest changing 1. to, “Warranty inspection shall be done by owner and will notify 
contractor in advance of and following inspection.” 

The Owner will be responsible for warranty inspection, see Addendum No. 1, Item 
1.c.1.  

 

15. Section 02313-3.6B Curing:  Will the District allow steam curing or does it have to be 
water? 

Curing method will be water per Section 02313.3.6.B. Steam curing is not allowed.   

 

16. Section 02313-3.8.4 APS test is not traditionally applied to CIPP; would the District allow 
air testing in lieu of this test as well as the ASTM exfiltration test referenced in Section 
02730-3.2B given the ASTM F1216-8.2 Exfiltration test is to pipe lengths with no service 
laterals.  APS is hydrostatic test used to verify integrity of a newly installed pipe, not a 
lined pipe. 

See response to Question 5 above. Section 02313-3.8.4 deleted, see Addendum 
No. 1, Item 1.c.4.  

 

17. For flow diversion, is there a restriction on type of hose that will be approved for the 
bypass, i.e. will lay-flat hose be allowed for overland bypass? 

Per Section 02145-2.2A, use of leak-proof flexible hose, including lay-flat hose, for 
bypassing sewers are permissible with written permission from the Owner for 
sewer sizes 8-inches in diameter and smaller, such as local or residual flows. 
Project pipelines to be rehabilitated shall be diverted using fusible HDPE and/or 
self-restrained joint PVC per Section 02145-2.2B or through allowable in-system 
diversions as indicated on the contract drawings. 

 

18. Section 02313-2.4.3 To our knowledge, Zia is similar to VeriCure. Please confirm this 
will be an acceptable alternative? 

The Engineer and Owner will determine whether the product is an approved equal 
based on the requirements of Section 02313-2.4. Contractor may submit Zia 
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product information as part of the submittal review process after the project is 
awarded. 

 

19. Section 02313-3.6-C.3 Please provide limits of the substances that compel filtering 
associated with discharge requirements? 

Section 02313-3.6.C.3 deleted, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.3.  

 

20. Section 02313-3.10 Without CCTV it’s difficult to discern which laterals are susceptible 
to groundwater infiltration and thus require a water-tight seal.  Please provide an 
assumed quantity and type of seal needed. 

Requirement for sealing the connection to prevent groundwater infiltration deleted 
in Section 02313-3.10, see Addendum No. 1, Item 1.c.5. Lateral connection sealing 
only required during overcut liner when reinstating laterals.  

 

21. Sheet D-1:  Pipe segment 19 - 10’ @15” then 25’ @ 21” – please provide detail of the 
size transition in order to understand lining needs in this stretch. 

Correction to pipe diameter for Pipe Segment 19 provided in Addendum No. 1, 
Items 2 and 3. Per Section 02313-2.3.B, the Contractor is responsible for verifying 
the lengths and inside diameter of all project pipes prior to ensure that the tube 
will have sufficient length and installed in a tight-fitted condition, without 
longitudinal wrinkles. 

 

22. Would it be possible to submit bids electronically given the COVID restrictions on travel? 

WVSD is not set up to accept electronic submission of bids. 

We are encouraging early mailing in/delivery of bid packages to WVSD and to not 
attend the Bid Opening in person. 

In the event a representative attends the bid opening, please allow time for: 

1. The front door will be locked.  They will need to call the number posted on the 
front door to be allowed in. 

2. Masks are required. 

3. A proximity sensor will be issued to all attendees.  This sensor will provide an 
audible alarm if you are within 6’ of another sensor. 

The Bid Opening will be conducted through virtual meeting. A link to the virtual 
meeting will be e-mailed to known plan holders and posted on the Owner’s 
website. 

 

23. Section 02313-3.2E Spot Repairs – This refers to Section 00310 for an established cost 
of repairs as needed following cleaning and CCTV work.  I don’t see any mention of this 
in section 00310; was there to be a separate bid item for this work?   

There are no payment provisions for Spot Repairs, any spot repairs identified 
during construction will be compensated through a negotiated change order or 
Time and Materials based change order. 
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24. Please define locations and lengths (extents) of spot repairs, and materials to be used.  
If unknown prior to bidding, we ask this be force account (T&M) work up to a set 
allocation. 

There are no payment provisions for Spot Repairs, any spot repairs identified 
during construction will be compensated through a negotiated change order or 
Time and Materials based change order. 

 

25. In the CIPP Spec Section 02313, under 2.2 A. LINER TUBE, Approved CIPP liner 
manufacturers are Insituform Technologies, Inliner Technologies, Applied Felts, Inc; or 
approved equal. We would like SAK’s Pipenology liners to be approved equal as well. 
How do I go about submitting documentation for Pipenology Liners so they can be 
considered as an approved equal? I don’t see anything in the bid documents to guide 
me.  

The Engineer and Owner will determine whether the product is an approved equal 
based on the requirements of Section 02313. Contractor may submit Pipenology 
liner product information as part of the submittal review process after the project 
is awarded.  

 

26. We would like to request that steam be allowed as a curing medium for the CIPP 
Liner.  This will be a quicker process to get the Contractor off the street, and with these 
size diameters, it is the industry norm.   

Curing method will be water per Section 02313.3.6.B. Steam curing is not allowed.   

 

27. Per 02730-3, Contractor is to perform a water test for 2 hours.  If water curing can we 
utilize the existing water in the pipe and our downtube to perform this test?   

Exfiltration test specified in Section 02730-3.2.B no longer required, see 
Addendum No. 1, Item 1.d.1.  

 

28. If water is used for curing medium, is Contractor allowed to discharge back into the 
sewer? 

Yes, cure water is allowed to be discharged back into the sewer. 

  

29. There are many Laterals that Tie into these segments.  With Water Cure, these will be 
blocked for potentially 24 hours.  A lot of them are Apartments, buildings, etc.  Are there 
cleanouts on these laterals in order for Contractor to bypass them? 

Known existing cleanouts are shown on the contract drawings. Contractor shall 
include installation of cleanouts where needed as part of Bid Item No. 4 in Section 
00310 – Bid Schedule for sewer flow control. 

 

30. As Contractor is rehabbing over 8” Sewers, please confirm that all bypass piping is to be 
HDPE Fusion Welded or Self Restrained joint PVC.   
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Per Section 02145-2.2A, use of leak-proof flexible hose, including lay-flat hose, for 
bypassing sewers are permissible with written permission from the Owner for 
sewer sizes 8-inches in diameter and smaller, such as local or residual flows. 
Project pipelines to be rehabilitated shall be diverted using fusible HDPE and/or 
self-restrained joint PVC per Section 02145-2.2B or through allowable in-system 
diversions as indicated on the contract drawings. 

 

31. Per Bypass Plan 1 sheet C-9, please confirm that there will not be any need for bypass if 
we set in place the diversions.  If there are laterals that tie in between our plug at MH 88 
and where we are lining, can Contractor utilize layflat hose, as the Sewer will be 21” 
(etc.) but the flow in the line will be extremely minimal.   

Per Section 02145-2.2A, use of leak-proof flexible hose, including lay-flat hose, for 
bypassing sewers are permissible with written permission from the Owner for 
sewer sizes 8-inches in diameter and smaller, such as local or residual flows. 

 

32. On Bypass Plan 2 Sheet C-10, Is the Diversion from 7-008-10 to 7-012-02 an above 
ground bypass, not a diversion? 

Per Sheet C-10, diversion from MH 7-008-10 to MH 7-012-02 is an overland/above 
ground bypass to be determined by the Contractor. 
  

33. On Bypass Plan 3 Sheet C-11, Is the “Divert Flow East to Sewer on E. Sunnyoaks” a 
Bypass?  If so where is it located?  This is a larger flow.   

Per Sheet C-11, the existing in-system bypassing route is indicated by the dashed 
line as shown in the legend. The system continues east within E. Sunnyoaks from 
MH 4-014-05.  
 
Bypass pumping information shown on the contract drawings serves only as a 
possible guide. Per Section 02145-1.4, estimated sewage flow volumes are 
provided on the Contract Drawings, and it is the Contractor’s responsibility to 
determine the amount of flow to be diverted and monitor the diversion to prevent 
surcharge above the crown of the pipe. The Owner is not responsible for any 
deviations in quantity or quality of the sewage flow at any time during work.  

 

34. It appears there are diversions that can be put in place in the existing sewer 
manholes.  Are there any above ground bypasses expected? 

Bypass pumping information shown on the contract drawings serves only as a 
possible guide. Per Section 02145-1.4, estimated sewage flow volumes are 
provided on the Contract Drawings, and it is the Contractor’s responsibility to 
determine the amount of flow to be diverted and monitor the diversion to prevent 
surcharge above the crown of the pipe. The Owner is not responsible for any 
deviations in quantity or quality of the sewage flow at any time during work.  
 
Overland/above ground bypasses are expected in the areas indicated on the 
contract drawings with additional overland/above ground bypasses needed as 
determined by the Contractor.  
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35. In reviewing the bid submittal documents, section 490, Safety Requirements and 
Certification, para 2.1.4 states that this section/form is to be submitted to the District as 
part of the Safety Submittal prior to issuance of the NTP, however, this section/form is 
also listed in Section 300, Article 7 as one of the items to be submitted with the 
bid.  Please clarify. 

Form 00490 – Safety Requirements and Certification is not required to be 
submitted with the Bid. Contractor shall submit forms A through G per Section 
00300-7.01 with the Bid. Form 00490 – Safety Requirements and Certification shall 
be submitted to the Owner as part of the Safety Submittal prior to the issuance of 
the NTP per Section 00490-2.1.4.  

 

 


